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Although most businesses are eagerly looking forward to 

increased growth over the next two years, many say they are 

concerned that confusion over complex customs regulations 

could hamper that success, according to a survey of small- 

to medium-sized businesses. The survey* turned up some 

surprising new findings, notably that some companies are 

gambling with their business by simply ignoring international 

trade regulations. Also, less than half feel extremely or very 

comfortable targeting new international markets – meaning 

they are missing out on profitable global opportunities.

Fortunately, it’s relatively easy for companies to avoid being 

caught in a web of customs complexity. Here are some 

tips from customs broker and trade consultant Livingston 

International on how to move smoothly from costly confusion 

to confident compliance.

Set goals in advance to make customs 
compliance easier
Nearly two-thirds of the survey’s respondents say their 

company has clearly defined goals to achieve international 

compliance and even more say they have developed 

standard operating procedures for customs. But many 

acknowledge their expertise is limited. Almost 30 percent1 

say they have no idea what it costs to clear borders. A similar 

number admit government regulations are so confusing they 

simply “hope for the best” when sending their company’s 

products across borders. 

To improve your customs process, the first step is to define 

clear and measurable compliance goals. Start by aligning 

Being prepared can improve your 
compliance, reduce your risk, 
and position your company to 
take advantage of global trade 
opportunities.

your business policies with the customs regulations. This 

creates better visibility of the import process, leading to 

improved costs and better controls. It also reduces border 

inspections and enables faster clearance times, improves 

management of your carriers (reducing transportation costs), 

and increases efficiency by automating tasks.

The second step is to maximize compliance with trade 

agreements. This may lower duty payments by correctly 

using Free Trade Agreements (FTAs), increases duty and tax 

recovery opportunities, and creates the ability to source from 

countries with FTAs.
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1.  As there are so many changes to government 
regulation, I tend to ignore them and hope for 
the best when transporting my company’s goods 
across international borders

30%



Streamlining the customs process helps manage your 

compliance risk. It reduces penalties, fines and professional 

fees relating to non-compliance, as well as hours spent 

reacting to non-compliance and audit preparation. The 

bonus is that you protect your company’s reputation, thereby 

improving accountability through the supply chain.

Ensure compliance and consistency with a 
customs manual
Even a small misstep in customs compliance can result 

in a big fine, so it’s important that everyone in a company 

understands how the regulations work. The easiest way to 

make sure of this is to have a good customs manual for all to 

rely on. Yet 46 percent2 of the businesses surveyed said that 

they do not have an up-to-date compliance manual.

A proper manual should 
document all aspects of your 
compliance program and include 
the following:
      

 ● Company overview – a profile of the 

company and all products; your trading 

partners and countries; the company’s 

organizational structure; annual reports;  

IT and systems overview.

 ●  Internal processes – purchasing, receiving, 

accounts payable, procurement-to-

payment cycle.

 ●  Customs programs – valuation, tariff 

classification, origin/free trade agreement 

certification, customs entry audit.

 ● Reference materials – locations, 

contact information, customs rulings, 

correspondence, internal audit results, 

external audit reports.

By updating this key information regularly, your 

company is prepared to avoid penalties in the 

event of an audit.
Actual numbers may be different due to rounding
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Be aware of changing regulations to stay 
competitive
Importing and exporting takes place in an ever-changing 

environment. World events, new trade agreements and 

increased security measures affect how goods move from 

one country to another – sometimes very quickly. More 

than 60 percent3 of the small- to medium-sized businesses 

surveyed say they are concerned that their organizations do 

not have up-to-date knowledge regarding clearing goods for 

international trade.

Keeping current on the latest changes can give you an 

advantage over your competition. You can participate in  

new programs that give you a competitive edge, and you 

can reduce duties and move goods quickly through the 

supply chain.

Many resources exist to help you stay informed. 
Among them:

 ● U.S. Customs and Border Protection Agency website at 

www.cbp.gov.

 ● U.S. Food and Drug Administration website at  

www.fda.gov.

 ● United States International Trade Commission 

(www.usitc.gov) for changes to the U.S. tariff as well as 

news on cases involving anti-dumping and intellectual 

property rights concerns.

 ● U.S. Department of Commerce; Bureau of Industry and 

Security (www.bis.doc.gov) for export compliance and 

best practices.

 ●  Canada Border Services Agency website at  

www.cbsa.gc.ca. The agency’s section specifically for 

small- to medium-sized businesses is  

www.cbsa.gc.ca/sme-pme/menu-eng.html.

 ● Canadian Food Inspection Agency website at  

www.inspection.gc.ca.

 ● Foreign Affairs and International Trade Canada website at 

www.international.gc.ca.

 ●   Industry Canada website at www.ic.gc.ca.

 ●  Livingston produces a weekly electronic publication that 

highlights the latest changes and news in the customs 

and international freight industry. It is available by email 

subscription at www.livingstonintl.com. Select Trade 

News from the main navigation bar at the top of the page 

and then click the ‘Subscribe Today’ to register.

 ● Livingston webinars are online seminars on a variety of 

customs and compliance topics. Participants can connect 

directly with industry experts. For information, visit  

http://go.livingstonintl.com/content/seminars. 

Prepare to be audited
Penalties can erase profits; customs delays can drive away 

customers. About seven in 10 of the businesses say they 

are concerned about compliance penalties due to products 

being incorrectly classified. More than 80 percent are 

worried about the effect of customs delays on their ability 

to manage their business, with nearly half being very or 

extremely concerned. 

There’s good reason for concern, as customs officials on 

both sides of the border have publicly stated that they are 

increasing the number of audits being conducted, and 

are focusing in on smaller importers too. They are also 

increasing the use and amounts of penalties, and introducing 

smaller, more targeted and single-program audits in addition 

to their full and comprehensive audit process. 

 

How can you be ready for an audit? Keep your customs 

manual up to date, because it’s the first thing an auditor will 

ask to see. Review your compliance processes to confirm 

you have appropriate systems and controls in place. Make 

sure there are process and system linkages through each 

department and that you can tie all documentation through 

the procurement-to-payment cycle. Confirm that all financial 

statements and agreements are accessible.

Keep your records in order
Good record-keeping is key to surviving an audit, which can 

result in duty adjustments going back four years, as well as 

financial penalties. A company can keep its own records or 

hire an outside customs broker. Either way, you need to be 

able to come up with accurate information quickly. Customs 

authorities across North America have moved away from 
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allowing importers time to hunt down information. Failure to 

produce documents in a timely fashion can result in hefty 

fines, including $10,000 per infraction for non-compliance 

and up to $100,000 per infraction for fraud. 

Fortunately, electronic record-keeping makes it easy to 

retrieve the information that Customs needs. If you maintain 

records yourself, make sure your IT department has proper 

backups for your company’s data and systems. You can 

also outsource your record-keeping to your customs broker. 

Livingston offers an easy-to-use, web-based solution that 

allows you to access your records whenever you need.

Note that if you are the importer of record, you must maintain 

your records for every transaction for a certain number of 

years, which differs by country. For example, in Canada, it’s 

six years, but in the United States, you must hold documents 

for five years.

Import safely – invest in security
Creating security initiatives for your shipments is important 

in customs compliance. Since 2001, customs agencies 

everywhere have increased their scrutiny, so companies 

are finding they need their own security measures to avoid 

delays and additional costs. 

Businesses need to be aware of how common items can 

become tools for terrorism. For example, food and drugs can 

easily be contaminated. Companies need to closely follow 

who manufactures their materials, as well as who packs, 

ships, and handles their merchandise through the supply 

chain. Programs such as Customs-Trade Partnership Against 

Terrorism in the U.S. incorporate security into your overall 

compliance program, helping you identify vulnerabilities and 

opportunities to streamline your process.

It’s a good idea for one employee to oversee all security 

for your company, but every employee needs to understand 

the message.

About Livingston International
A leading North American provider of customs brokerage 

and trade compliance services, Livingston International 

also offers international trade consulting services as well as 

international freight forwarding across North America and 

around the globe. With its U.S. headquarters in Chicago, 

Livingston operates along the U.S.-Canada border, with 

regional air/sea hubs in Los Angeles, New York and Norfolk. 

Livingston employs over 2,800 employees at more than 

100 key border points, seaports, airports and other strategic 

locations in North America, Europe and the Far East. 

www.livingstonintl.com 

About the survey* 
Ipsos Public Affairs conducted the survey online on behalf 

of Livingston International between April 3 and April 11, 2012, 

among a national sample of 500 professionals in the import-

export sector in small- and medium-sized businesses in 

the United States. Weighting was employed so the findings 

are reflective of an even mix of small- and medium-sized 

companies. Margins of sampling error at a 95 percent 

confidence level would be +/- 4.4 percentage points for 

respondents from all industries combined if conducted using 

a probabilistic sample; the margin of error would be larger 

within sub-groupings of the survey population. Complete 

results are available at www.livingstonintl.com. 

Contact Livingston  

Have questions or need help with your 

shipments? Contact your account executive,

write to us at: simplify@livingstonintl.com

or give us a call at 1-800-837-1063




